
 AS S O C I A T I O N  O F  B A Y  AR E A  GO V E R N M E N T S  
Representing City and County Governments of the San Francisco Bay Area 

C A L L  A N D  N O T I C E  

CALL AND NOTICE OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE OF 
THE ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS 

As Chair of the Administrative Committee of the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG), 
I am calling a special meeting of the ABAG Administrative Committee as follows: 

Special Joint Meeting with the MTC Planning Committee 

Friday, February 24, 2017, 9:30 a.m. 

Location: 

Bay Area Metro Center 
Board Room CR 110B 
375 Beale Street 
San Francisco, California 

 

The ABAG Administrative Committee may act on any item on this agenda. 

Agenda and attachments available at abag.ca.gov 

This meeting is scheduled to be webcast live on the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
website at mtc.ca.gov 

For information, contact Fred Castro, Clerk of the Board, at (415) 820 7913. 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / CONFIRM QUORUM 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. ABAG COMPENSATION ANNOUNCEMENT 

ABAG Administrative Committee INFORMATION 

ABAG Clerk of the Board will give the ABAG compensation announcement. 

4. APPROVAL OF ABAG ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE SUMMARY MINUTES OF 
MEETING ON DECEMBER 9, 2016 

ABAG Administrative Committee ACTION 

5. MTC COMPENSATION ANNOUNCEMENT 

MTC Planning Committee INFORMATION 

  

Call and Notice

http://abag.ca.gov/
http://www.mtc.ca.gov/


ABAG Administrative Committee 
February 24, 2017 
Page 2 
 
6. MTC PLANNING COMMITTEE CONSENT CALENDAR 

MTC Planning Committee APPROVAL 

A. MTC Planning Committee Minutes of the February 10, 2017 Meeting 

7. REPORT ON ABAG / MTC OPTION 7 IMPLEMENTATION ACTION PLAN 

A. Report on Draft Contract for Services for MTC / ABAG Staff Consolidation for 
Review and Input 

ABAG Administrative Committee INFORMATION / MTC Planning Committee 
INFORMATION 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT / OTHER BUSINESS 

ABAG Administrative Committee INFORMATION / MTC Planning Committee 
INFORMATION 

9. MTC PLANNING COMMITTEE ADJOURNMENT / NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting of the MTC Planning Committee will be March 10, 2017, 9:30 a.m., at the 
Bay Area Metro Center, 375 Beale Street, San Francisco, California. 

10. ABAG ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE CLOSED SESSION 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

Agency designated representatives:  Brad Paul, Acting Executive Director; Kenneth Moy, 
Legal Counsel; Courtney Ruby, Finance and Administrative Services Director; 
Marti Paschal, Assistant Director of Administrative Services 

Employee organization:  SEIU Local 1021 

  

Call and Notice



ABAG Administrative Committee 
February 24, 2017 
Page 3 
 
11. ABAG ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE ADJOURNMENT / NEXT MEETING 

The next joint meeting of the ABAG Administrative Committee and MTC Planning 
Committee will be announced. 

 

Members of the public shall be provided an opportunity to directly address the ABAG 
Administrative Committee concerning any item described in this notice before consideration of 
that item. 

Agendas and materials will be posted and distributed for this meeting by ABAG staff in the 
normal course of business. 

 

Submitted: 

 

 

/s/ Julie Pierce 
Chair, Administrative Committee 

 

Date Submitted:  February 21, 2017 

Date Posted:  February 21, 2017 

Call and Notice



Blank Page 



 AS S O C I A T I O N  O F  B A Y  AR E A  GO V E R N M E N T S  
Representing City and County Governments of the San Francisco Bay Area 

A G E N D A  

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

Special Joint Meeting with the MTC Planning Committee 

Friday, February 24, 2017, 9:30 a.m. 

Location: 

Bay Area Metro Center 
Board Room CR 110B 
375 Beale Street 
San Francisco, California 

 

The ABAG Administrative Committee may act on any item on this agenda. 

Agenda and attachments available at abag.ca.gov 

This meeting is scheduled to be webcast live on the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
website at mtc.ca.gov 

For information, contact Fred Castro, Clerk of the Board, at (415) 820 7913. 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / CONFIRM QUORUM 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. ABAG COMPENSATION ANNOUNCEMENT 

ABAG Administrative Committee INFORMATION 

ABAG Clerk of the Board will give the ABAG compensation announcement. 

4. APPROVAL OF ABAG ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE SUMMARY MINUTES OF 
MEETING ON DECEMBER 9, 2016 

ABAG Administrative Committee ACTION 

Attachment:  Summary Minutes of December 9, 2016 

5. MTC COMPENSATION ANNOUNCEMENT 

MTC Planning Committee INFORMATION 

  

Agenda

http://abag.ca.gov/
http://www.mtc.ca.gov/


ABAG Administrative Committee 
February 24, 2017 
Page 2 
 
6. MTC PLANNING COMMITTEE CONSENT CALENDAR 

MTC Planning Committee APPROVAL 

A. MTC Planning Committee Minutes of the February 10, 2017 Meeting 

Attachment:  MTC Planning Committee Summary Minutes of February 10, 2017 

7. REPORT ON ABAG / MTC OPTION 7 IMPLEMENTATION ACTION PLAN 

A. Report on Draft Contract for Services for MTC / ABAG Staff Consolidation for 
Review and Input 

ABAG Administrative Committee INFORMATION / MTC Planning Committee 
INFORMATION 

Brad Paul, ABAG Acting Executive Director, and Steve Heminger, MTC Executive 
Director, will present the Draft Contract for Services (CS) between MTC and ABAG to 
establish adequate staffing and support of ABAG’s statutory duties and responsibilities. 

Attachment:  Memo Draft Contract for Services for MTC / ABAGT Staff Consolidation 
with Attachments 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT / OTHER BUSINESS 

ABAG Administrative Committee INFORMATION / MTC Planning Committee 
INFORMATION 

9. MTC PLANNING COMMITTEE ADJOURNMENT / NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting of the MTC Planning Committee will be March 10, 2017, 9:30 a.m., at the 
Bay Area Metro Center, 375 Beale Street, San Francisco, California. 

10. ABAG ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE CLOSED SESSION 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

Agency designated representatives:  Brad Paul, Acting Executive Director; Kenneth Moy, 
Legal Counsel; Courtney Ruby, Finance and Administrative Services Director; 
Marti Paschal, Assistant Director of Administrative Services 

Employee organization:  SEIU Local 1021 

  

Agenda



ABAG Administrative Committee 
February 24, 2017 
Page 3 
 
11. ABAG ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE ADJOURNMENT / NEXT MEETING 

The next joint meeting of the ABAG Administrative Committee and MTC Planning 
Committee will be announced. 

 

Submitted: 

 

 

/s/ Brad Paul, Acting Secretary-Treasurer 

 

 

Date Submitted:  February 21, 2017 

Date Posted:  February 21, 2017 

 

Agenda



Blank Page 



SUMMARY MINUTES (DRAFT) 
ABAG Administrative Committee Meeting 

Friday, December 9, 2016 
Bay Area Metro Center 

375 Beale Street, Board Room 
San Francisco, California 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / CONFIRM QUORUM 

ABAG President and Committee Chair Julie Pierce, Councilmember, City of Clayton, called 
the meeting of the Administrative Committee of the Association of Bay Area Governments to 
order at about 10:09 a.m. 

The Committee met jointly with the Planning Committee of the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission. 

A quorum of the Committee was present. 

Members Present 

Councilmember Julie Pierce, City of Clayton 
Supervisor Dave Cortese, County of Santa Clara 
Mayor Pat Eklund, City of Novato 
Mayor Pradeep Gupta, City of South San Francisco 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, County of Alameda 
Supervisor Mark Luce, County of Napa 
Vice Mayor Greg Scharff, City of Palo Alto 

Members Absent 

Mayor Bill Harrison, City of Fremont 
Supervisor Eric Mar, City and County of San Francisco 
Councilmember Raul Peralez, City of San Jose 
Supervisor Dave Pine, County of San Mateo (Alternate) 
Supervisor David Rabbitt, County of Sonoma 

Staff Present 

Brad Paul, ABAG Acting Executive Director 
Kenneth Moy, ABAG Legal Counsel 
Miriam Chion, ABAG Planning and Research Director 

2. ABAG COMPENSATION ANNOUNCEMENT 

Fred Castro, ABAG Clerk of the Board, made the compensation announcement. 

3. APPROVAL OF ABAG ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE SUMMARY MINUTES OF 
MEETING ON NOVEMBER 4, 2016 

Chair Pierce recognized a motion by Scott Haggerty, Supervisor, County of Alameda, which 
was seconded by Pat Eklund, Councilmember, City of Novato, to approve the Administrative 
Committee summary minutes of the meeting on November 4, 2016. 

The ayes were:  Pierce, Cortese, Eklund, Gupta, Haggerty, Luce, Scharff. 

The nays were:  None. 

Item 4



Summary Minutes (Draft) 
ABAG Administrative Committee Special Meeting 

Friday, December 9, 2016 
Page 2 

 
The abstentions were:  None. 

The absences were: Harrison, Mar, Peralez, Pine (Alternate), Rabbitt. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

4. MTC PLANNING COMMITTEE CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. MTC Planning Committee Approval of Minutes of the November 4, 2016 Meeting 

The MTC Planning Committee approved its minutes of the November 4, 2016 meeting. 

5. PLAN BAY AREA 2040 UPDATE 

A. Plan Bay Area 2040:  Environmental Impact Report (EIR) Scoping Feedback and 
Alternatives 

ABAG Administrative Committee ACTION / MTC Planning Committee APPROVAL 

Ken Kirkey, MTC Planning Director, reported on Plan Bay Area 2040:  Environmental 
Impact Report (EIR) Scoping Feedback and Alternatives, including a review of the 
purpose of CEQA; the Notice of Preparation and written and oral comments submitted; 
the identification of CEQA alternatives and development of the EIR; the alternatives 
recommended, i.e., No Project, Main Streets, Big Cities, and EEJ—Environment, Equity 
and Jobs (6 Wins), and the alternatives not recommended, i.e., Connected 
Neighborhoods, Smart Growth (TRANSDEF), Modified No Project (City of Livermore), 
and Plan Bay Area (2013 RTP/SCS). 

Members discussed the following:  the Environment, Equity and Jobs alternative and 
jobs-housing balance; fiscalizaton of land use and commercial and research and 
development growth; local jobs and housing; comparison of 2013 EEJ alternative. 

Kirkey introduced Amy Higuera, Thomas Law Group, and Heidi Tschudin, EIR 
Consultant. 

Amy Higuera, Thomas Law Group, commented on actual CEQA requirements regarding 
alternatives to be reviewed, and transparency and a public process. 

The following individuals gave public comment: David Zisser, Public Advocates; 
Scott Lane; Matt Vander Sluice, Greenbelt Alliance. 

The MTC Planning Committee took action on this item. 

Members discussed the following:  the Main Streets alternatives and investment in 
highways and roads. 

Chair Pierce recognized an ABAG Administrative Committee motion by Pradeep Gupta, 
Vice Mayor, City of South San Francisco, which was seconded by Greg Scharff, Vice 
Mayor, City of Palo Alto, to recommend ABAG Executive Board approval of the selection 
of alternatives to be evaluated as part of the Plan Bay Area Environmental Impact 
Report, as described in the staff report. 

Chair Pierce called for the vote on the substitute motion. 

The ayes were:  Pierce, Cortese, Eklund, Gupta, Haggerty, Luce, Scharff. 

The nays were:  None. 

The abstentions were:  None. 

Item 4



Summary Minutes (Draft) 
ABAG Administrative Committee Special Meeting 

Friday, December 9, 2016 
Page 3 

 
The absences were: Harrison, Mar, Peralez, Pine (Alternate), Rabbitt. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT / OTHER BUSINESS 

There following individual gave public comment on items not on the agenda:  Scott Lane on 
San Mateo County county-wide transportation planning. 

7. ADJOURNMENT / NEXT MEETING 

Chair Pierce adjourned the meeting at about at 10:39 a.m. 

The next joint meeting of the ABAG Administrative Committee and MTC Planning 
Committee will be announced. 

 

Submitted: 

 

 

/s/ Brad Paul, Acting Secretary-Treasurer 

 

Date Submitted:  January 25, 2017 

Date Approved:   

 

For information, contact Fred Castro, Clerk of the Board, at (415) 820 7913 or 
FredC@abag.ca.gov. 

 

Item 4

mailto:FredC@abag.ca.gov


Blank Page 



Bay Area Metro Center

375 Beale Street

San Francisco, CA 94105

Metropolitan Transportation 

Commission

Meeting Minutes - Draft

Planning Committee

MTC Committe Members:

James P. Spering, Chair   Anne W Halsted, Vice Chair

Alicia C. Aguirre, Damon Connolly, 

Scott Haggerty, Sam Liccardo, Julie Pierce

Non-Voting Members: Tom Azumbrado, Dorene M. Giacopini

9:30 AM Board Room - 1st FloorFriday, February 10, 2017

1. Roll Call / Confirm Quorum

Commissioner Aguirre, Commissioner Haggerty, Vice Chair Halsted, Commissioner 

Liccardo, Commissioner Pierce, Chair Spering, and Commissioner Connolly

Present: 7 - 

Non-Voting Member Present: Commissioner Giacopini 

Non-Voting Member Absent: Commissioner Azumbrado

Ex Officio Voting Member Present: Commission Chair Cortese

Ex Officio Voting Member Absent: Commission Vice Chair Mackenzie

Ad Hoc Non-Voting Members Present: Commissioner Josefowitz and Commissioner Slocum.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Compensation Announcement - Committee Secretary

4. Consent Calendar

Approval of the Consent Calendar

Upon the motion by Commissioner Aguirre and second by Vice Chair Halsted, the 

Consent Calendar was unanimously approved by the following vote:

Aye: Commissioner Aguirre, Vice Chair Halsted, Commissioner Pierce, Chair Spering 

and Commissioner Connolly

5 - 

Absent: Commissioner Haggerty and Commissioner Liccardo2 - 

4a. 17-2211 Minutes of the January 13, 2017 Meeting

Action: Committee Approval

Commissioner Haggerty and Commissioner Liccardo arrived after the approval of the Consent 

Calendar.

Page 1 Printed on 2/16/2017

Agenda Item 6a

http://mtc.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=16402


February 10, 2017Planning Committee Meeting Minutes - Draft

5. Information

5a. 17-2143 Vital Signs Update - Winter 2017

Overview of the latest regional land use and economic performance trends, 

as well as new performance indicators related to social equity.

Action: Information

Presenter: Dave Vautin

6. Public Comment / Other Business

Anastasia Yovanopoulos was called to speak.

7. Adjournment / Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Planning Committee will be March 10, 2017, 9:30 a.m. at the 

Bay Area Metro Center, 375 Beale Street, San Francisco, CA.

Page 2 Printed on 2/16/2017

Agenda Item 6a

http://mtc.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=16334


TO: Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) Executive 
Board 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) 

Joint MTC Planning Committee and ABAG Administrative 
Committee 

DATE: February 13, 2017 

FR: Brad Paul, ABAG Acting Executive Director 

Steve Heminger, MTC Executive Director 

RE: Draft Contract for Services for MTC/ABAG Staff Consolidation for Review and Input 

Summary and Requested Action 

The Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) and the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) jointly retained Management Partners (MP) to conduct a study on the 
potential merger of the two agencies. MP presented the Options Analysis and Recommendation 
Report dated April 18, 2016 with seven options. The agencies joined in expressing policy 
support for Option 7 that proposes ABAG and MTC entering into (1) a contract to consolidate 
staff functions under one executive director (CS) and (2) a memorandum of understanding 
regarding new governance options (MOU).  

Further, the agencies adopted an Implementation Action Plan (IAP) designed by Management 
Partners to guide the staff consolidation. The ABAG and MTC senior staffs have been working 
on the IAP under the policy direction provided by our respective policy bodies. Over the past 
several months, MTC and ABAG staff have been working diligently to put together a contract 
for services (CS). A draft of the contract, which represents a consensus by both agency staff, is 
attached to this memorandum as Attachment A.  The balance of this memorandum provides 
guidance for your policy review of the draft CS.  

Background and Discussion 

A. Policies and Principles for the Agencies’ Support of Option 7 IAP

At the May 19, 2016 meeting of the Executive Board of ABAG, it approved Resolution 07-16 
(Attachment B) expressing its policy support for Options 4 and 7 from Management Partners 
(Report). Resolution 07-16 also provided approval of the Option 7 IAP if MTC selected Option 7 
(see below). Resolution 07-16 also placed specific conditions on ABAG’s policy approval of 
Option 7 and the IAP, including principles to guide the IAP process.  

Agenda Item 7a



Draft Contract for Services for MTC/ABAG Staff Consolidation for Review and Input 
February 13, 2017 
Page 2 

At the May 25, 2016 meeting of the Commission, it approved Resolution 4245 (Attachment C) 
expressing its policy support for Option 7. MTC’s policy support for Option 7 activated the 
provisions in ABAG’s Resolution 07-16 relating to policy support for that option and the 
concomitant IAP. At its meeting on June 22, 2016, the Commission approved the Option 7 IAP. 

There are differences in the policies and principles articulated in the Executive Board Resolution 
07-16 and the Commission’s Resolution 4245 that informed and conditioned their respective
support for Option 7. The staffs have attempted to reflect both sets of policies and principles in
the initial draft of the CS and the governance MOU that will follow soon.

B. ABAG and MTC Remain Separate and Independent Entities

Under Option 7, ABAG and MTC remain separate entities with their own statutory authorities 
and responsibilities, policy positions, assets, liabilities, revenues and debts. All existing and 
future business and programmatic risks remain with the agency conducting that business or 
program. The ABAG Local Collaboration Programs (LCPs) also retain their assets, liabilities and 
business risks. ABAG will have the same responsibility for the revenues and assets of the LCPs 
but MTC staff will be acting on ABAG’s behalf in executing those responsibilities.  

Based on direct discussions with CalPERS, we understand that: (1) even if ABAG has no 
employees, its contract with CalPERS remains valid and enforceable and (2) ABAG will 
continue to be responsible for the unfunded annual liability payments for pensions and for retiree 
medical benefits1. We are seeking confirmation from CalPERS that there are no negative or 
unforeseen effects on ABAG’s or MTC’s pension liability as a result of the MTC/ABAG staff 
consolidation. It will be important to get this determination prior to approval of the contract for 
services. While we have made progress to this end, CalPERS has requested some additional 
information to aid in their response.  

We recognize that having MTC staff provide services and programs to ABAG exposes MTC to 
third party claims arising out of those services and programs. We have addressed those risks by 
clearly articulating that ABAG retains those risks. In addition, we have configured the defense, 
indemnity, hold harmless and insurance provisions of the contract to manage these risks under a 
joint acquisition of commercial insurance coverage2. 

C. Developing Work Plans under the Contract for Services

Our initial efforts focused on the components of a straightforward contract for one entity to 
provide services to another. Therefore, there are provisions in the draft CS that provide 
procedures for (1) the development of budgets and programmatic work plans for ABAG and the 
LCPs3, (2) MTC to provide administrative and support services to ABAG and the LCPs4 and (3) 

1 See section 6.1 of the draft CS. 
2 See sections 9 and 10 of the draft CS. 
3 See sections 3.2 and 4.1 of the draft CS. 
4 See sections 3.3, 3.4 and 4.3 of the draft CS. 

Agenda Item 7a



Draft Contract for Services for MTC/ABAG Staff Consolidation for Review and Input 
February 13, 2017 
Page 3 

compensation to MTC for services provided5. These reflect basic and standard processes for 
negotiating a standard service contract. In addition, the procedures in the draft CS take into 
account ABAG’s and the LCPs’ current processes for policy level approval of their respective 
annual budgets and work plans. 

We expect that many of the programmatic work plans for ABAG activities that do not overlap 
with MTC’s activities will be at the sole discretion of ABAG or the LCPs. However, one purpose 
of Option 7 is to improve coordination between ABAG and MTC over joint programs such as the 
preparation of updates to the region’s sustainable communities strategy, or Plan Bay Area. Since 
the preparation of the current update will have been mostly completed, the draft CS does not 
propose a specific process for coordination on work plan for the 2021 update. That will come 
later from discussions between the ABAG and MTC governing boards. 

D. Developing Budgets under the Contract for Services

ABAG and the LCPs currently have revenues from multiple sources. Some of the revenues, 
mainly grants and subventions, may only be used for specific programs and products. The 
balance, largely ABAG’s membership dues and reserves held by ABAG and the LCPs, are 
discretionary. We anticipate that the development of future budgets and work plans will continue 
to draw on both types of revenues, including grants and subventions to ABAG and/or the LCPs. 

As you have been previously advised, the services provided by the consolidated staff will cost 
more than those provided by the current ABAG staff. We have identified a number of measures 
that will address a significant portion of the cost difference for the initial year. We are working 
diligently to provide a balanced budget, focusing on cost saving opportunities where feasible and 
minimizing the need for contributions from MTC reserves to address any remaining shortfalls.  

The draft CS also recognizes that the cost differences for subsequent years need to be addressed. 
The draft CS includes a provision where ABAG acknowledges the need to identify additional 
revenues in the future6. 

E. Executive Policy Oversight of Work under the Contract for Services

The IAP recognized the need for an executive level organizational structure at MTC that 
supports ABAG’s policy bodies and members7. To that end, the draft CS includes key functions8 
of the executive director and other key senior staff that support ABAG in its role as a Council of 
Governments and a joint powers authority and that preserve the essential relationships between 
the policymakers and members of ABAG and the LCPs and the consolidated staff9. These 

5 See section 5 of the draft CS. 
6 See section 4.2 of the draft CS. 
7 See section B.6 at page 5 of the IAP and section 2.1 of the draft CS. 
8 See section 2.3 of the draft CS.  
9 See section 2.4 of the draft CS. 

Agenda Item 7a



Draft Contract for Services for MTC/ABAG Staff Consolidation for Review and Input 
February 13, 2017 
Page 4 

provisions will be coordinated with the provisions in the CS that better describe the executive 
organization structure and the Transition Plan. 

We have also included a provision for ABAG, if necessary, to raise concerns about the quality 
and manner of work completed for it or the LCPs10. This is a mechanism for policy feedback 
after the work is performed. Finally, we note that any disputes regarding how the consolidated 
staff is responding to the policy input and programmatic needs of ABAG and the LCPs are also 
subject to the dispute resolution procedures in the draft CS. 

The organization chart is still being finalized and will be included along with the Employee 
Transition Plan as an attachment to the final CS Plan (see discussion in section F of this 
memorandum). 

F. Next Steps

Your input and comments will inform the final recommended CS and the following documents: 

1) Attachments to the CS
o Transition Plan – the plan for transitioning individuals identified as current employees of

ABAG who are expected to accept an offer of employment at MTC.
o Employee Organization Chart – a graphic representation of the hierarchic and functional

relationships among the consolidated staff.

2) Memorandum of Understanding regarding governance options

We will also report on our discussions with CalPERS as developments occur.  

The proposed information meetings to seek input on the Draft CS are as follows: 

 February 16: ABAG Executive Board Review of Draft Contract for Services
 February 24: Special Joint MTC Planning/ABAG Administration Committee Review of

Draft Contract for Services

The schedule for approval of the CS and MOU will be updated based on the input at the 
February meetings and the progress of conversations with CalPERS. 

Brad Paul Steve Heminger 

BP / SH: ab / bp 
J:\COMMITTE\Planning Committee\Special Joint Meeting\2017\02_Joint_Feb 24 2017\Draft Contract for Services.docx

10 See section 2.5 of the draft CS. 

Agenda Item 7a



 

 
 

Draft February 13, 2017 

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

between 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

and 

ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS 



 

i 
 

1. DEFINITIONS ...................................................................................................... 2 

2. PRESERVATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND MISSIONS OF ABAG 
AND THE LCPs ................................................................................................... 3 

3. SERVICES .......................................................................................................... 4 

4. OPERATING BUDGETS AND WORK PLANS; STAFFING ................................ 5 

5. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT .............................................. 7 

6. EMPLOYMENT OF ABAG LEGACY PERSONNEL ............................................ 7 

7. RESPONSIBILITIES OF MTC PERSONNEL ...................................................... 9 

8. GOVERNANCE STUDY ...................................................................................... 9 

9. RELEASE OF CLAIMS ........................................................................................ 9 

10. INSURANCE AND RISK ALLOCATION .............................................................. 9 

11. NOTICES .......................................................................................................... 10 

12. DURATION OF AGREEMENT .......................................................................... 11 

13. DISPUTE RESOLUTION ................................................................................... 11 

14. TERMINATION .................................................................................................. 11 

15. CHOICE OF LAW .............................................................................................. 12 

16. PARTIAL INVALIDITY ....................................................................................... 12 

17. BENEFIT OF AGREEMENT .............................................................................. 12 

18. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; MODIFICATION .......................................................... 12 

 
 



 

1 

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

THIS CONTRACT FOR SERVICES (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the __ 
day of Month, 20___, by and between the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (herein called 
“MTC”), a regional transportation planning agency established pursuant to California Government Code 
§ 66500 and the Association of Bay Area Governments, (herein called “ABAG”), a Council of 
Governments established by agreement among its members pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers 
Act, California Government Code Sections 6500, et seq. 

RECITALS 

MTC is the federally designated Metropolitan Planning Organization (“MPO”), pursuant to 
Section 134(d) of Title 23 of the United States Code (USC) for the nine-county San Francisco Bay Area 
region (the “Bay Area” or “region”). 

ABAG was created in 1961 and serves as the Council of Governments for the 101 cities/towns 
and nine counties that make up the region with powers and responsibilities granted to it under the laws 
of the State of California. 

In November 2015 MTC and ABAG agreed to jointly retain Management Partners to conduct a 
merger study and to propose a merger implementation plan.  

At the June 2016 meeting of the ABAG Executive Board, it adopted Resolution 07-16 stating its 
support for merger options 4 and 7 and their respective implementation action plans as presented by 
Management Partners, with the ABAG Executive Board acknowledging moving forward with merger 
option 7.  

On May 25, 2016 MTC adopted Resolution No. 4245 approving an implementation plan dated 
May 17, 2016 for merger option 7. 

ABAG and MTC have concluded that this Agreement is the preferred means for ABAG and MTC 
to jointly pursue their respective missions and to carry out their respective responsibilities for the benefit 
of the San Francisco Bay region.  



 

2 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. DEFINITIONS 

ABAG is a joint powers agency that serves  as the region’s Council of Governments with the 
statutory responsibilities and  powers granted by the California Legislature including, but not limited 
to, (a)  responsibility for preparation of portions of the region’s sustainable communities  strategy and
 (b) authority to adopt the regional housing need allocation (RHNA)  plan. The ABAG Executive 
Board and/or its standing committees and Local Collaboration Program governing boards are 
referenced from time to time in this Agreement in order to represent the interests of ABAG. 

ABAG Legacy Employees means the individuals identified in Section [5] of this  Agreement, 
each of whom, as of the Effective Date, is currently an employee of  ABAG and is expected, in 
accordance with the Employee Transition Plan, to accept an offer of employment at MTC. 

Effective Date means the effective date of this Agreement as set forth above. 

Employee Transition Plan means the plan for transitioning ABAG Legacy Employees to 
 employment at MTC as described in Exhibit [B] to this Agreement. 

Enterprise Board means the governing board of a LCP. 

Local Collaboration Program (LCP) means, individually or collectively as the  context may 
require, each of the following entities created by ABAG in  collaboration with local governments to 
implement a regional program: 

Bay Area Regional Energy Network (BayREN); 

San Francisco Estuary Partnership (SFEP);  

San Francisco Bay Trail (BayTrail) and Water Trail (Water Trail); 

ABAG Finance Authority for Nonprofit Corporations (FAN); 

ABAG Finance Authority (ABAG FA); 

ABAG PLAN Corporation (PLAN); 

ABAG Publicly Owned Energy Resources (POWER); 

Shared Agency Risk Pool (SHARP); and 

San Francisco Bay Restoration Authority (SFBRA). 

MTC ICAP Rate means the indirect cost allocation plan, as approved by the appropriate MTC 
oversight agency.  

Operating Budget and Work Plan means each annual operating budget and work plan for ABAG 
prepared and submitted by MTC in accordance with Section  [4] of this Agreement and approved by 
the ABAG Executive Board and, to the extent applicable, each LCP governing body. Each operating 
budget and work plan will describe, in detail, the scope of work to be performed by MTC and the 
compensation to be paid to MTC for services rendered. 



 

3 

Transitioned Employee means each ABAG Legacy Employee who, after cessation of his or her 
employment at ABAG, voluntarily accepts an offer of  employment at MTC and becomes an employee 
of MTC. 

 
2. PRESERVATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND MISSIONS OF ABAG AND THE LCPs 

The parties agree to use their best efforts to preserve, serve and secure the statutory powers 
and responsibilities of ABAG and the mission of ABAG as the region’s Council of Governments 
following the Effective Date, and similarly to preserve, serve and secure the respective goals and 
missions of the LCPs. A list of ABAG’s statutory responsibilities is attached as Exhibit [A] and may be 
revised to reflect changes to those responsibilities and powers made by the California Legislature 
without formal amendment of this contract. To ensure that the services provided under this Agreement 
serve the goals and missions of ABAG and the LCPs, the parties agree as follows: 

   

 2.1 The Executive Director of MTC will perform the following duties and functions with respect 
to ABAG and the LCPs: 

(a) attend all regular meetings of the ABAG Executive Board and key committees 
 (Administrative Committee, Finance and Personnel Committee, Legislation and Government 
 Operations Committee, Regional Planning Committee) unless excused in advance by the 
 President of such board or chair of the committee, or the attendance of another MTC senior 
 manager is mutually agreed upon; 

(b) attend meetings of the LCP governing boards at which Operating Budgets and Work 
 Plans are adopted by and for the LCPs; and 

(c) ensure that the approved Operating Budgets and Work Plans for ABAG  and for each 
 LCP will be implemented as approved, or as modified by ABAG or the LCP, as applicable; 

 (d) attend the ABAG General Assembly(ies). 

2.2 The Executive Director, the Deputy Executive Director for Local Government Services, the 
Deputy Executive Director of Policy, and other members of the MTC senior executive team will perform 
the following duties and functions on behalf of ABAG and the LCPs with the help of other appropriate 
MTC staff as needed: 

 (a) keep local elected officials, government officials and stakeholders informed on key issues of 
concern to the Council of Governments including land use, housing, economic development, resilience, 
transportation, RHNA, Plan Bay Area, and ABAG’s Local Collaboration Programs  in part, by: 
 
    (i)  meeting regularly with City Managers at the county level; 
    (ii) meeting with elected officials at regular countywide meetings of mayors and city     
                   council members; 
    (iii) meeting with ABAG delegates at the county level on a regular basis. 
  
 (b) serve as the primary links between ABAG’s Executive Board, Committees and Local 
Collaboration Programs (LCP) and the MTC executive team and staff regarding issues such as Plan 
Bay Area, RHNA, housing, land use and LCP programs. 
 



 

4 

 (c) work with appropriate MTC staff to help coordinate the work of MTC staff and ABAG 
Executive Board related to creating the Annual Budget & Work Plan for ABAG and its Local 
Collaboration Programs. 
 
2.3 The members of ABAG and LCP’s and the members of the policy bodies of ABAG and of the LCPs 
will continue to have access to, and ability to interact with, the MTC staff who provide services to them, 
that is commensurate with their respective roles as policymakers and staff.  
 
 
2.4 ABAG shall provide written reports to the Commission regarding the quality and manner in which 
ABAG services, programs and work products are delivered, observations on the potential reasons for 
any deficiencies and suggestions for improvements. The Commission will respond to such reports 
within  60 calendar days and take them into account when reviewing MTC’s satisfactory execution of 
its duties under the contract. 

3. SERVICES 

3.1 Standard of Professional Care   

In the performance of services under this Agreement, MTC will exercise professional care, skill, 
efficiency, and judgment commensurate with that of consultants with expertise in providing such 
services. 

3.2 Operating Budgets and Work Plans 

Except as otherwise identified in this Agreement or the applicable Operating Budget and Work 
Plan, MTC will assume responsibility for and perform all services and functions necessary to perform 
ABAG’s annual Work Plan. MTC and ABAG will develop, present, seek approval for, and implement 
Operating Budgets and Work Plans as provided in Section [4]. 

3.3 Financial Services 

All ABAG finance and accounting functions, including the treasury function, will be assigned to 
MTC to be completed within the period from the execution date to a year thereafter, in such fashion to 
close out the transition of all legacy systems in an orderly manner for MTC finance. 

ABAG and MTC will develop a transition plan for all ABAG financial systems, including but not 
limited to: (1) treasury; (2) general ledger, including accounts payable and receivable; (3) budget; and 
(4) payroll. The transition will occur and MTC will be responsible for all financial systems on or about 
July 1, 2017. 

MTC rules for administration, personnel, payroll, employee relations, purchasing, contracting 
and other business operations shall apply to the services provided here under, to the extent to which 
they are compatible with ABAG policies.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, ABAG contracts exceeding 
$50,000 or such other amount dictated by the ABAG Executive Board, shall be approved by the ABAG 
Executive Board. 

 



 

5 

MTC will provide necessary financial reports prior to each ABAG Finance and   Personnel 
Committee meeting, provided, however that such reports shall not be required more often than on a 
monthly basis. 

3.4 Legal Services 

The MTC Legal Department will provide general legal support services to ABAG and the LCPs. 

(a) Potential Legal Conflicts of Interest. If ABAG, a LCP, or MTC determines in good faith 
that an actual or potential conflict of interest would exist if the MTC Legal Department 
were to provide legal services on a specific matter, then, unless the actual or potential 
conflict of interest is waived by the affected entities, then the affected entity whose matter 
gave rise to the actual or potential conflict of interest will obtain separate legal counsel. 
MTC shall not withhold consent or resources to hire outside counsel for ABAG in the 
event a legal conflict of interest; provided that ABAG independently obtains such separate 
outside counsel. 

(b) Obtaining Outside Specialized Legal Services. ABAG or a LCP may request that the MTC 
Legal Department retain outside legal counsel to provide specialized legal services. The 
MTC Legal Department shall promptly respond to any such request in writing by either (i) 
agreeing to engage outside legal counsel and commencing to work with ABAG or the 
LCP, as applicable, to retain such counsel on terms and conditions acceptable to MTC, 
the MTC Legal Department, and the requesting party or (ii) declining to engage outside 
legal counsel and providing a brief explanation of the reason(s) such request is being 
denied. 

(c) Nothing in this Agreement prevents or impairs the ability of ABAG or the LCP to directly 
retain outside legal counsel, at its own respective expense. 

 
 
3.5 Progress Reports 

MTC will provide to the ABAG Executive Board and to the governing bodies of the LCPs quarterly 
progress reports in form and substance reasonably acceptable to those bodies, detailing the services 
provided by MTC in the preceding fiscal quarter as well as major activities anticipated in the coming 
quarter. 

4. OPERATING BUDGETS AND WORK PLANS; STAFFING 

4.1 Development and Approval 

No later than February 1 of each year, the program managers of each program that is implemented, in 
whole or in part, for ABAG and of each program implemented for the LCPs will develop a schedule for 
the development of the Budget and Work Program for their respective program for the next fiscal year. 
Each schedule will take into account the processes and timelines for the applicable MTC, ABAG and 
LCP policy bodies to approve a Budget and Work Plan.  

Each Budget and Work Program will include all of the following that is applicable to that program for 
that year: 

(a) description of programmatic activities for that fiscal year; 



 

6 

(b) proposals for expansion of a current programmatic activity; 

(c) proposals for a new program (see section 4.2 regarding funding new programs); 

(d) description of programmatic activities that will be discontinued in that fiscal year; 

(e) a budget showing the revenue(s) needed to support the proposed Work Plan for that budget 
year; 

(f) identification of the source of the revenue(s) described in subsection (e) and 

(g) any contingency plan(s) needed to address programmatic uncertainties or budgetary 
shortfalls. 

Each Budget and Work Plan that is approved by all the applicable MTC, ABAG and LCP policy 
bodies will be implemented in accordance with section 4.2. The Deputy Executive Director for Local 
Government Services will be responsible for securing the approval of the LCP policy bodies. 

If a Budget and Work Plan is not approved by all the applicable MTC, ABAG and LCP policy 
bodies, the prior year’s Budget and Work Plan will remain in effect until the new Budget and Work Plan 
is approved.  The parties may at their discretion use the dispute resolution procedures contained in 
Section 13 to resolve any differences on proposed new Budget and Work Plans. 

Following consultation with ABAG and the FAN Executive Committee, MTC will administer the 
current FAN portfolio in runout mode such that there will be no new debt issuance under the FAN name. 
The consolidated staff working for MTC will, no later than ______,  create a successor ABAG-affiliated 
conduit financing authority, which shall be a new legal entity with a new name and a new governing 
body (the ABAG Executive Board or its designee), to continue to meet the conduit financing needs of 
the region and of ABAG’s member jurisdictions. 

4.2 Revenues 

The ABAG Executive Board and the LCP governing bodies will collaborate and agree on annual work 
plans and budgets that identify existing revenues needed to support the current work plans and 
obligations set forth in Section 4.1. As part of this annual process, the ABAG Executive Board and the 
LCP governing bodies will make best efforts and adopt strategies to identify and secure any additional 
revenues that may be needed to support the anticipated work plans and obligations set forth in Section 
4.1 for that fiscal year. With regard to any new programs proposed by ABAG, if that program is one that 
solely supports ABAG’s services, programs and mission, ABAG will be responsible for securing the 
funding for that program. If a new program is one that is jointly proposed by ABAG and MTC, the two 
agencies will agree on how to jointly fund the program. 

4.3 MTC Staffing 

The MTC employees identified as part of the Budget approval process (which shall contain an 
organization chart) will be responsible, commencing as of the Effective Date, for providing the services 
under this Agreement, both to ABAG and to the LCPs.  Except as provided in section 6, MTC may 
remove, replace or add to the list of MTC employees below at any time as needed in the judgment of 
MTC. 



 

7 

5. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT 

5.1 Compensation 

For the first fiscal year in which services under this Agreement commence, ABAG will pay to 
MTC compensation equal to the amounts scheduled to be paid under pre-existing adopted work plans 
and budgets for ABAG in that fiscal year. 

For all subsequent fiscal years, ABAG will compensate MTC based upon amounts specified in 
each of the approved Operating Budget and Work Plan for such fiscal year. 

Compensation structures may include, subject to budget discussions between MTC and ABAG: 

(a) total or partial cost recovery by MTC, based upon a breakdown of personnel costs, direct 
costs, and indirect costs; 

(b) total funding by MTC of select entities or programs; 

(c) subsidy of select entities and programs by MTC; 

(d) subsidy of select entities and programs by ABAG; and/or 

(e) subsidy of programs by one or more LCP. 

 
 
5.2 Overhead and Administrative Costs 

The overhead and administrative rate applied to work performed by MTC staff will be the MTC 
ICAP Rate except for the San Francisco Estuary Partnership (SFEP) and as the parties may otherwise 
agree in the applicable Budget and Work Plan or under section 5.1. 

5.3 Payment Procedure and Method 

ABAG will compensate MTC promptly in accordance with the payment schedule set forth in each 
Operating Budget and Work Plan, without netting or set-off except as agreed to in writing, in advance, 
by MTC in its sole discretion.   

Payment to MTC will be made by wire transfer. 

 

6. EMPLOYMENT OF ABAG LEGACY PERSONNEL 

ABAG Legacy Employees are expected to become employees of MTC in accordance with the 
Employee Transition Plan.  Each Transitioned Employee’s general duties and responsibilities will be 
equivalent to his or her prior duties and responsibilities as an ABAG employee. 

ABAG represents and warrants that: (a) there are no current open disciplinary actions related to 
employees proposed to transition to MTC and (b) the information regarding employee benefits, 
including its CalPERS account, retiree medical benefits, and sick account accruals provided by ABAG 
and inserted in the Transition Plan is complete and accurate. 



 

8 

The following individuals are hereby identified as ABAG Legacy Employees: 

[Insert List or attach schedule – include name, current ABAG title and program affiliation] 

6.1 Pension Obligations and Other Employee Benefits 

ABAG Legacy Employees are currently represented by the Service Employees’ International 
Union (SEIU), Local 1021, and are part of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
(CalPERS).  ABAG and MTC will cooperate and coordinate their discussions with SEIU Local 1021 and 
CalPERS to facilitate the transition of ABAG Legacy Employees from ABAG employment to MTC 
employment. 

The parties hereby agree with respect to any and all Transitioned Employees that ABAG shall 
have no direct control over any such Transitioned Employees.  Such Transitioned Employees shall be 
treated for all purposes as common law employees of MTC. 

ABAG agrees that it will not at any time during the term of this Agreement take any action to 
terminate its existing contractual relationship with CalPERS and will take all steps necessary to maintain 
its existing contractual relationship with CalPERS, including but not limited to making annual payments 
to CalPERS as required by under such contractual arrangements. 

 

6.2 Changes in Employment Status 

During the first fiscal year after the Effective Date, prior to making any employment change 
(including but not limited to termination, reassignment, or promotion) with respect to any Transitioned 
Employee, MTC will provide the ABAG Executive Board with 30 days prior written notice of the intended 
change before any action is taken. No Transitioned Employee may be terminated, reassigned, or 
promoted during such period without prior written notice to the ABAG Executive Board and the affected 
LCP, if applicable. 

6.3 Employee Transition Plan  

MTC will follow the terms of the Employee Transition Plan set forth in Exhibit [B], which sets 
forth various one-time provisions applicable to Transitioned Employees. 

6.4 Plan for Staff Consolidation 

Transitioned Employees will transition to MTC by May 1, 2017. 

6.5 LCP Staffing and Officers 

ABAG agrees to make best efforts to work with the LCPs to formally modify any relevant 
agreements to allow staffing at the LCPs to be contracted to MTC. In those instances in which one or 
more former ABAG staff members serve in “dual capacities,” sitting as officers of LCPs by virtue of their 
former positions within ABAG, all reasonable efforts will be made to formally modify relevant 
agreements or otherwise put legal arrangements in place such that MTC staff, will serve as officers of 
such LCPs. 



 

9 

6.6 SFEP Staff 

The current existing staff, with the exception of the three staff performing permit work for the 
Regional Water Quality Control Board, will move the location of their employment from 1515 Clay 
Street, Suite 1400, Oakland, CA to 375 Beale Street, San Francisco, CA, at such time as the space at 
375 Beale Street is ready for occupancy. MTC will pay for the costs of moving the SFEP staff to 375 
Beale Street. 

6.7 Pension and Medical Benefits 

ABAG will retain all liability for meeting its annual obligation for outstanding CalPERS pension 
obligations and retiree medical benefits, and will make meeting such obligations a budgetary priority. 

7. RESPONSIBILITIES OF MTC PERSONNEL 

7.1 Personnel  

Attached as Exhibit [D] is the MTC organization chart identifying all of the employees of the 
consolidated staff as of the Effective Date. This organization chart will be updated annually or as 
changes are made so that the ABAG policy bodies and LCP governing boards have up to date 
information on people staffing their programs.  

8. GOVERNANCE STUDY 

MTC and ABAG agree to conduct a governance study on the ABAG LCPs and to present the 
findings to the ABAG Executive Board and appropriate LCP Boards for consideration.  The objective of 
the governance study will be to increase accountability to the ABAG Executive Board and efficiency in 
the operation of the LCPs. 

9. RELEASE OF CLAIMS 

ABAG, the LCPs, and MTC mutually agree to indemnify and hold each other harmless for any 
breach of this Agreement, and agree to release any and all claims between or amongst each other 
arising out of this agreement. 

10. INSURANCE AND RISK ALLOCATION  

10.1 Engagement of Consultant(s) 

MTC and ABAG will jointly engage a professional risk manager and an insurance broker (who 
may be the same party) to develop a proposed allocation of legal risk (claims from third parties) between 
and among MTC, ABAG and the LCPs during the term of the Agreement. The process for selecting 
and engaging such party or parties will be as follows: 

(a) Not more than 60 days after the Effective Date, MTC will initiate, by procurement 
procedures employed by MTC in the ordinary course of business, a request for 
proposals/qualifications (the “Solicitation”) for the services described above and to assist 
and advise MTC in procuring and implementing the policies and practices set forth in 
subsection 10.2. 



 

10 

(b) MTC staff will review responses to the Solicitation and evaluate them based on factors 
such as responsiveness, qualifications/reputation, and cost, and will select one or more 
preferred providers. 

(c) MTC staff will present the choice of the selected provider(s) to the MTC Administration 
Committee and the ABAG Finance and Personnel Committee for approval. 

10.2 Insurance Policies 

Upon retention of the consultant retained pursuant to subsection 10.1, MTC will work with the 
consultant to undertake the following: 

(a) ABAG, the LCPs, and MTC will be insured under one blanket comprehensive general 
liability policy, professional errors and omissions policy (if applicable) and crime and 
fidelity policy.  ABAG, the LCPs, and MTC will be insured under separate public officials 
and directors and officers errors and omissions policy 

(b) The allocation of the costs of deductibles under the policy described in the immediately 
preceding paragraph will be determined on a case by case bases under criteria and 
processes to be agreed upon by the parties after the Effective Date; 

(c) MTC will be insured under a separate employment practices policy; and 

(d) The costs of any uninsured claims made against either of the parties will be allocated on 
a case by case basis under criteria and processes to be agreed upon by the parties after 
the Effective Date. 

10.3 Business and Programmatic Risks 

The parties agree that existing business and programmatic risks will remain with the entity 
responsible for the relevant business or program. 

11. NOTICES 

All notices or other communications to either party by the other will be deemed given when made 
in writing and delivered, mailed, emailed, or faxed to such party at their respective addresses as follows: 

To MTC: Attention: Alix Bockelman 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
375 Beale Street, Suite 800 
San Francisco, CA  946105 
Email: ABockelman@mtc.ca.gov 

To ABAG: Attention: ABAG President 
                 ABAG Vice President 
                 Chair, ABAG Finance Committee 
                 ABAG Administrative Committee           

members 
address: home address for each person 
Email: email address for each person 
cc: MTC Deputy Dir. for Local Gov’t Services 



 

11 

  

12. DURATION OF AGREEMENT 

This agreement and the services hereunder will continue unless terminated in accordance with 
the terms herein. 

13. DISPUTE RESOLUTION  

(a) ABAG and MTC shall use good faith efforts to resolve all disputes informally.  In the event 
such efforts are unsuccessful, either party may request that MTC provide a written 
determination as to the proposed resolution of the dispute.  Within 30 calendar days of 
the request, the MTC Administration Committee shall provide a written determination as 
to the dispute, including the basis for its decision.   

Upon the ABAG Administrative Committee’s written acceptance of the MTC 
Administration Committee’s determination, the Agreement may be modified and the 
determination implemented. 
 
If the MTC Administration Committee’s determination is not accepted by the ABAG 
Administrative Committee, the matter shall promptly be referred to the joint MTC board 
and the ABAG Executive Board for consideration. 
 
If the joint MTC board and ABAG Executive Board cannot agree, they shall retain a 
facilitator to assist them in reaching a joint resolution. 
 
 

(b) If the joint MTC board and ABAG Executive Board cannot agree, the dispute shall be 
referred to binding arbitration using an arbitration board supplied by JAMS.  Each party 
shall bear the costs and expenses incurred by it in connection with such binding 
arbitration.  The cost shall be shared equally; provided, however, that should the 
arbitrator(s) find specific fault by one party, then that party shall bear the entire cost. The 
arbitration shall determine the final outcome of the dispute, including whether and when 
a termination of this Agreement may occur. 

 
 

14. TERMINATION 

14.1  Termination for Cause 

If (i) MTC does not deliver the work products specified in this Agreement in accordance with the 
mutually agreed upon delivery schedule or fails to perform in the manner called for in the Agreement, 
as set forth in Section 3 of this Agreement, or (ii) if MTC or ABAG fail to comply with any other material 
provision of the Agreement, then (A) in the first instance under (i) ABAG may terminate this Agreement 
for default and (B) in the second instance under (ii) MTC may respectively terminate for ABAG’s failure 
or ABAG may respectively terminate for MTC’s failure.   

Termination shall be effected by serving a thirty (30) day advance written notice of termination on the 
affected party, setting forth in detail the manner in which the affected party is in default. If the affected 



 

12 

party does not cure the breach or describe to the complaining party’s satisfaction a plan for curing the 
breach within the thirty (30) day period, commencing on the date of receipt of the notice (“Cure Period”), 
the complaining party may terminate the Agreement for default, subject to the procedures set forth in 
Section 13, which shall first require dispute resolution as set forth in Section 13(a), and if unsuccessful, 
arbitration as set forth in Section 13(b). The final decision in arbitration shall determine whether and 
when termination shall occur.  In the case of (i), if MTC is working diligently to cure the alleged failure 
of performance, the parties will extend the Cure Period by mutual agreement.  The Cure Period may 
be extended a maximum of six (6) thirty day periods. 

If MTC’s failure to perform resulted from unforeseeable causes beyond the control of MTC, such as a 
strike, fire, flood, earthquake or other event that is not the fault of, or is beyond the control of MTC, 
ABAG, after setting up a new delivery or performance schedule, shall allow MTC to continue work. 

14.2   Notice of Termination   

Notice will be given by Certified Mail or Personal Service to the address specified in Section 11. 

14.3  Payment for Services Rendered Following Notice of Termination   

MTC will be compensated for all work performed up to and including the date of termination of 
this Agreement, notwithstanding the delivery of any notice under this Section 14, provided that MTC 
will not be compensated for any work that is under dispute and identified in the notice provided under 
section 14.1. 

 

15. CHOICE OF LAW 

All questions pertaining to the validity and interpretation of the Agreement will be determined in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California applicable to agreements made and to be performed 
within the State. 

 

16. PARTIAL INVALIDITY 

If any term or condition of this Agreement is found to be illegal or unenforceable, such term or 
condition will be deemed stricken and the remaining terms and conditions will remain valid and in full 
force and effect. 

17. BENEFIT OF AGREEMENT 

The Agreement will bind and benefit the parties hereto and their heirs, successors, and permitted 
assigns. 

18. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; MODIFICATION 

This Agreement, including any attachments, constitutes the complete agreement between the 
parties and supersedes any prior written or oral communications. This Agreement may be modified or 
amended only by written instrument executed by both ABAG and MTC. In the event of a conflict 
between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the attachments, the terms of this Agreement 
will prevail. 



 

13 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto as of the day 
and year first written above. 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION 

ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA 
GOVERNMENTS 

 __________________________________   __________________________________  
Jake Mackenzie, Chair Julie Pierce, President 

 



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Administrative Committee 

 

Members 

 

Julie Pierce, Councilmember, City of Clayton—Chair 

David Rabbitt, Supervisor, County of Sonoma—Vice Chair 

 

Cindy Chavez, Supervisor, County of Santa Clara 

David Cortese, Supervisor, County of Santa Clara—Ex officio 

Pat Eklund, Councilmember, City of Novato 

Pradeep Gupta, Mayor, City of South San Francisco 

Scott Haggerty, Supervisor, County of Alameda 

Karen MItchoff, Supervisor, County of Contra Costa 

Raul Peralez, Councilmember, City of San Jose 

Greg Scharff, Mayor, City of Palo Alto 

 

2/17/17 

Roster



Blank Page 



 AS S O C I A T I O N  O F  B A Y  AR E A  GO V E R N M E N T S  
Representing City and County Governments of the San Francisco Bay Area 

M E E T I N G  S C H E D U L E  2 0 1 7  

Approved by the Executive Board:  November 17, 2016 

For meeting date and time and location, see meeting notice, agenda and attachments available 
at http://www.abag.ca.gov/ 

For information, contact Fred Castro, Clerk of the Board, at (415) 820 7913. 

General Assembly 
Date: Monday, January 30 

10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. 

Location: Bay Area Metro Center, 375 Beale Street, Yerba Buena Conference Room, 
San Francisco 

General Assembly and Business Meeting 
Date: Thursday,  May 11 

Time: 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. 

Location: Bay Area Metro Center, 375 Beale Street, Yerba Buena Conference Room, 
San Francisco 

Executive Board 
Dates: Thursday, January 19 

Thursday, February 16 
Thursday, March 16 
Thursday, May 18 
Thursday, July 20 
Thursday, September 21 
Thursday, November 16 

Time: 7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. 

Location: Bay Area Metro Center, 375 Beale Street, Board Room, San Francisco 

  

Schedule

http://www.abag.ca.gov/


Association of Bay Area Governments 
Meeting Schedule 2017 

Page 2 
 

 

Legislation and Governmental Organization Committee 
Dates: See Executive Board Schedule 

Time: 3:30 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

Location: Bay Area Metro Center, 375 Beale Street, Board Room, San Francisco 

Finance and Personnel Committee 
Dates: See Executive Board Schedule 

Time: 5:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. 

Location: Bay Area Metro Center, 375 Beale Street, Board Room, San Francisco 

Administrative Committee 
Dates: Special meetings scheduled as needed. 

Regional Planning Committee 
Dates: Wednesday, February 1 

Wednesday, April 5 
Wednesday, June 7 
Wednesday, August 2 
Wednesday, October 4 
Wednesday, December 6 

Time: 12:00 p.m. to 3:00 p.m. 

Location: Bay Area Metro Center, 375 Beale Street, Yerba Buena Conference Room, 
San Francisco 

Contact: Wally Charles, Administrative Secretary, Planning, (415) 820 7993, 
wallyc@abag.ca.gov 

 

Schedule


	AC 20170224 Call and Notice Final
	Blank Page
	AC 20170224 Agenda Final
	Blank Page
	AC 20170224 Item 04 Minutes 20161209 Draft
	Blank Page
	AC 20170224 Item 06A PLNG Minutes_Feb 10 2017_v2
	AC 20170224 Item 07A Draft Contract for Services for MTC ABAG Staff Consolidation with Attachments
	Draft Contract for Services
	Latest CS draftfinal
	1. DEFINITIONS
	2. PRESERVATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND MISSIONS OF ABAG AND THE LCPs
	3. SERVICES
	3.1 Standard of Professional Care
	3.2 Operating Budgets and Work Plans
	3.3 Financial Services
	3.4 Legal Services
	(a) Potential Legal Conflicts of Interest. If ABAG, a LCP, or MTC determines in good faith that an actual or potential conflict of interest would exist if the MTC Legal Department were to provide legal services on a specific matter, then, unless the a...
	(b) Obtaining Outside Specialized Legal Services. ABAG or a LCP may request that the MTC Legal Department retain outside legal counsel to provide specialized legal services. The MTC Legal Department shall promptly respond to any such request in writin...
	(c) Nothing in this Agreement prevents or impairs the ability of ABAG or the LCP to directly retain outside legal counsel, at its own respective expense.

	3.5 Progress Reports

	4. OPERATING BUDGETS AND WORK PLANS; STAFFING
	4.1 Development and Approval
	(a) description of programmatic activities for that fiscal year;
	(b) proposals for expansion of a current programmatic activity;
	(c) proposals for a new program (see section 4.2 regarding funding new programs);
	(d) description of programmatic activities that will be discontinued in that fiscal year;
	(e) a budget showing the revenue(s) needed to support the proposed Work Plan for that budget year;
	(f) identification of the source of the revenue(s) described in subsection (e) and
	(g) any contingency plan(s) needed to address programmatic uncertainties or budgetary shortfalls.

	4.3 MTC Staffing

	5. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT
	5.1 Compensation
	(a) total or partial cost recovery by MTC, based upon a breakdown of personnel costs, direct costs, and indirect costs;
	(b) total funding by MTC of select entities or programs;
	(c) subsidy of select entities and programs by MTC;
	(d) subsidy of select entities and programs by ABAG; and/or
	(e) subsidy of programs by one or more LCP.

	5.2 Overhead and Administrative Costs
	5.3 Payment Procedure and Method

	6. EMPLOYMENT OF ABAG LEGACY PERSONNEL
	6.1 Pension Obligations and Other Employee Benefits
	6.2 Changes in Employment Status
	6.3 Employee Transition Plan
	6.4 Plan for Staff Consolidation
	6.5 LCP Staffing and Officers
	6.6 SFEP Staff
	6.7 Pension and Medical Benefits

	7. RESPONSIBILITIES OF MTC PERSONNEL
	7.1 Personnel

	8. GOVERNANCE STUDY
	9. RELEASE OF CLAIMS
	10. INSURANCE AND RISK ALLOCATION
	10.1 Engagement of Consultant(s)
	(a) Not more than 60 days after the Effective Date, MTC will initiate, by procurement procedures employed by MTC in the ordinary course of business, a request for proposals/qualifications (the “Solicitation”) for the services described above and to as...
	(b) MTC staff will review responses to the Solicitation and evaluate them based on factors such as responsiveness, qualifications/reputation, and cost, and will select one or more preferred providers.
	(c) MTC staff will present the choice of the selected provider(s) to the MTC Administration Committee and the ABAG Finance and Personnel Committee for approval.

	10.2 Insurance Policies
	(a) ABAG, the LCPs, and MTC will be insured under one blanket comprehensive general liability policy, professional errors and omissions policy (if applicable) and crime and fidelity policy.  ABAG, the LCPs, and MTC will be insured under separate publi...
	(b) The allocation of the costs of deductibles under the policy described in the immediately preceding paragraph will be determined on a case by case bases under criteria and processes to be agreed upon by the parties after the Effective Date;
	(c) MTC will be insured under a separate employment practices policy; and
	(d) The costs of any uninsured claims made against either of the parties will be allocated on a case by case basis under criteria and processes to be agreed upon by the parties after the Effective Date.

	10.3 Business and Programmatic Risks

	11. NOTICES
	12. DURATION OF AGREEMENT
	13. DISPUTE RESOLUTION
	(a) ABAG and MTC shall use good faith efforts to resolve all disputes informally.  In the event such efforts are unsuccessful, either party may request that MTC provide a written determination as to the proposed resolution of the dispute.  Within 30 c...
	(b) If the joint MTC board and ABAG Executive Board cannot agree, the dispute shall be referred to binding arbitration using an arbitration board supplied by JAMS.  Each party shall bear the costs and expenses incurred by it in connection with such bi...

	14. TERMINATION
	14.1  Termination for Cause
	14.2   Notice of Termination
	14.3  Payment for Services Rendered Following Notice of Termination

	15. CHOICE OF LAW
	16. PARTIAL INVALIDITY
	17. BENEFIT OF AGREEMENT
	18. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; MODIFICATION

	Draft_Contract_for_Services_Attach-B_ABAG_Reso_07-16
	Draft_Contract_for_Services_Attach-C_MTC_Reso-4245_approved

	COB Website Roster AC 20170217
	Blank Page
	Meeting Schedule 2017 Final 20161117



